
LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

Present: Chair Bennett, R. Haak, J. Palmer, D. Richards, D. Simpson, J. Sparling, CEOA.  
Backus, Attorney J. Campbell & Secretary, A. Houk.    

Agenda:   
1)  Approve themeeting minutes fromMay22, 2017.  

2)   Justin Bruckel – 5607 Pebble Beach Road, Lakeville, NY
Subdivision forsingle family dwelling.  

3)  Sweeteners Plus – 5768 Sweeteners Blvd, Lakeville, NY14480
Preliminary SitePlan - Proposed Powder Building.  

4)  Crown Castle/Verizon CellTower – Frank West property, Livonia, N.Y.  
SitePlancontinuation – CellTower

Chair Bennett opened themeeting at7:00p.m.   

1. Meeting Minutes forMay22, 2017.  -  ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove.    
M/2/C (R. Haak/J. Palmer) approved assubmitted.  Carried 6-0

2)  Justin Bruckel – 5607 Pebble Beach Road, Lakeville, NY14480

ChairR. Bennett invited Justin Bruckel andBobWinans ofLandTech Surveying & Planning,  
LLC. tocomeforward todiscuss aproposed subdivision.  Theyarerequesting tosubdivide the
property intothree lots.  Onelotwillbeused forasingle family dwelling withdriveway access
toWestLakeRoadandis5.78Acres. Theparcel isonthenorth eastsideoftheWestLakeRoad
andisapproximately 59acres.  Itislocated at5607 Pebble Beach Road intheAgricultural
Residential Conservation – 3 (ARC-3).  Theproperty issloped totheeastandhasanairstrip
landing thatruns through theproperty.  Theparcel willhaveapproximately 265’ oflotwidth
behind runway andapproximately 310’ deep.  Therewillbea12’ widedriveway offanexisting
curbcutonWestLakeRoad.  Thiseasement willbe32’ wide, with10’ oneach sideofthe
driveway.   Water willbebrought from theexisting service offWestLakeRoad.  Theywillbe
obtaining sanitary sewer easement coming off fromPebble Beach Road.  A20’ wide sanitary
sewer easement fromproperty tothesouth, owned byDavidPietrowski.  There isa70’ wide
Airport landstripeasement toallow access & allowAirstrip toremain functional.  There willbe
a250’ greenarea toeastern property lineacting asabuffer andtoexcept anywater run-off from
thehouse & driveway.  There isastream located onthenorthern sideoftheproperty linewhich
isapproximately 1000’ fromwhere theyplantobuild.   CEOA. Backus wanted assurance tothe
Planning Board that thisdevelopment would nothaveanyadverse effects fromwater run-off
down toPebble Beach.  Water run-offinthisarea iscurrently aconcern forthehomes onPebble
Beach, water currently migrates behind several homes.  CEOA. Backus explained that thearea
northoftheproposed sewer easement haswater coming offthehill thatendsupbehind the
homes onPebble Beach, thisseems tobethecurrent flow pattern.  Heisaware that there is

1



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

already water issues andwants assurance that thisdevelopment willnotbecontributing toany
additional water flow.  D. Simpson asked ifthere wereanycompliant currently regarding the
water flow.  CEOA. Backus confirmed that there havebeenseveral complaints.  J. Palmer asked
iftherewasaneed foraretention pond.  CEOA. Backus confirmed that iswhyhefeelshaving
anEngineers Drainage report isnecessary.  ChairR. Bennett asked iftherewereplans forfuture
development ofthisarea.  B. Winans stated that there havebeenpreliminary discussions with the
Bruckles regarding afuture Winery whichwillmost likely happen, butcurrently noplans have
beencreated yet.  When thatphase begins, astorm water management planwould most likely
needtobedoneduetoroadway & parking.  Currently theyaretrying tokeepthedevelopment
minimal.  Attorney J. Campbell asked ifthrough calculations, cantheydemonstrate thatpost
development flowwon’tbeincreased andhaveanegative impact.  ChairR. Bennett stated that
this isasensitive areaand theBoard would likeanEngineers report ondrainage forthisproject
tobedone.  Attorney J. Campbell asked how close theywere totheoneacre disturbed.  B.  
Winans stated that theyareclose, butthey areunder oneacre.  Attorney J. Campbell asked ifthe
areacoming upfromPebble Beach forthesanitary sewer would everbeconsidered
ingress/egress access for theWinery.  J. Buckle confirmed that itwillonlybeusedforthe
easement andwillhavezerovehicle access.  J. Sparling asked ifthissitewaswooded asthere
wasalotofdirtbeing moved.  CEOA. Backus stated that thedirtclearing waspartoftheparcel
that isbeing subdivided.  J. Bruckel stated that thedirtwasnotrelated toclearing thebrushoff,  
hehadsomefilldirtbrought in.  ChairR. Bennett stated thatbrush clearing andfilldirtwere
addresses onaseparate permit.  CEOA. Backus stated that there isaRVlocated onthenorth
endoftheparcel, which required aConditional UsePermit.  Thefuture plan isthat theRVwill
beleaving andthisareawillbecome thedriveway forthisparcel.  

ChairR. Bennett stated that theBoard consensus wasthattheywould require aPublic Hearing as
thisisasensitive area fromaconservation stand point, andallother property inthisarea have
required aPublic Hearing.  Wewillschedule thisPublic Hearing meeting forJuly10, 2017at
which timetheapplicant willprovide drainage calculations.  

3)  Sweeteners Plus – 5768 Sweeteners Blvd, Lakeville, NY14480

Chair Bennett invited JohnHooker ofSweeteners PlusandTomFromberger, P.E. ofMRB
Group tocome forward toexplain theproposal.  Theywould liketoconstruct a24,000. Sq. Ft.  
building forreceiving deliveries byrail, access toexpanded additional railyard, Tractor Trailer
loading, employee parking andanaccess point toNYSRte. 15.  Thebuilding willbeusedfor
bothgranular andliquid sugar products andwilloperate 7daysaweek, 24hoursaday.  Site
lighting isproposed forthefacility with timers andgeneral security lighting.  Stormwater
management willbecontrolled onsite through proposed water quality andquantity measures.   
Utility connections willaccommodate forrestrooms within thefacility.   Theparcel is
approximately 33.8acres andiszonedbothCommercial Limited Industrial (C/LI) and Industrial
I).  They haveprovided Building elevations, Short Environmental Assessment andthe

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) fortheBoard’sreview.  ChairR. Bennett asked
iftheyhavecontacted theD.O.Tforthecurbcuts.  T. Fromberger stated thatitiscurrently going
through theprocess.  ChairR. Bennett asked forclarification ontrucktraffic & toexplain the

2



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

purpose ofthetrucks.  J. Hooker stated thattherewillbe24tractor trailers perday.  Therailcars
willbring intwotypesofproduct, aliquid andagranular solution.  Inthewinter, thesugar
granular becomes veryhard likeconcrete andwill need steam tounthaw itintoaliquid.  Once it
becomes aliquidsolution, itcanbeloaded onto thetrucks.  Some trucks willbegoing tothe
existing production site, others tothenew proposed building.  Since production willbetaking
placeatboth plants, therewillnotbeanincrease intruck traffic.  Most trucks will leave the
facility between twoandfour inthemorning when there isvery little traffic.  Thetrucks will
return later thatevening orthenextmorning.  J. Palmer stated that thisapplication didgobefore
theLivingston County Planning Board andwasrecommended forapproval.  T. Fromberger
provided Attorney J. Campbell acopyoftheCounty recommendation letter forhisreview.  J.  
Sparling asked ifyoucould seethenewbuilding fromtheroad.  J. Hooker stated thatitis
located backontheproperty bytherail roadanditnotveryvisible.  

ChairR. Bennett stated that thePublic Hearing wasnotrequired andasked foramotion towaive
thePublic Hearing.  Motion towaive: M/2/C (J. Palmer/D. Richards) Carried 6-0

ChairR. Bennett andtheBoard reviewed SEQR.  Negative declaration wasdetermined.  The
applicant hasprovided theSWPPP report andwilladdress erosion control andStormwater
drainage.  Motion toapprove: M/2/C (J. Palmer/J. Sparling) Carried 6-0

ChairR. Bennett asked formotion toapprove theSitePlan.  Motion toaccept SitePlanas
submitted.  Motion toapprove: M/2/C (J. Sparling/R. Haak) Carried 6-0

4)  Crown Castle/Verizon CellTower – Frank West property, Livonia N.Y.  

ChairR. Bennett invited Jeffrey DavisofBarclay Damon, attorney for theapplicant, Crown
Castle andco-applicant Verizon Wireless tocome forward.  Mr. J. Davis stated that theBoard
hasasked about disguising theCellTower pole.  Hereviewed with theBoard Members pictures
ofwhata “Mono Pine” CellTower would look like.  There were alsodiscussion regarding small
CellTower sites inNewYorkState.  ChairR. Bennett stated thatourRFConsultant has
provided ussufficient showofneedandlocation fortheir coverage requirements.  

ChairR. Bennett reviewed PartIoftheEnvironmental Assessment FormwiththeBoard.  On
page4of13, question “g” should reflect aTower height of155’.  Onpage10of13question “d”  

Arethereanyfacilities serving children, theelderly, people withdisabilities within 1500 feet
oftheproject.  Theanswer should becorrected tosay “yes”.  Westview HillSenior Living is
within the1500’ area.  J. Davis stated that thetower height hasbeencorrected ontheDecember
22, 2016application.  

R. Haak asked forclarification regarding page13of13, question “f”.  J. Davis confirmed thathe
hasnotreceived anySHPO information backand thathewould have beenmade aware ifthere
was.  

3



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

ChairR. Bennett reviewed Part2oftheFullEnvironmental Assessment with theBoard
Members.  Question 1, Impact onLandwasanswered yes.  Proposed action mayinvolve
construction on, orphysical alteration of, thelandsurface oftheproposed site.  Subsection
questions A-Hofthissection wereallanswered no, orsmall impact mayoccur.    

Question 18, which states Consistency withCommunity Character.  “Theproposed project is
inconsistent with theexisting community character”.  TheBoard answered yestothisquestion.   
R. Haak stated that thisshould beanswered yesbecause ofthevisibility oftheTower andit
would bethefirst thingyousawwhen entering intotheCommunity.  ChairR. Bennett asked for
avote fromtheBoard forthose answering yestothequestions.  R. Haak, D. Richards, D.  
Simpson andJ. Sparling answered yes.  TheBoard continued toreview questions A-Gofthis
section.   

D. Simpson showed hisconcern again about thelocation oftheTower.  Crown Castle willbuild
thisfacility andanother provider willwant toco-locate.   Theywillshowaneed togohigher
thanthe155’, anditwill thenturn intoa175’ Tower intheVillage ofLivonia.  Attorney J.  
Campbell stated that theapplicant hasshown aneedandwith thatcomes acertain levelof
protection because itisapublic utility.  J. Davis stated whenaTower isbuilt, itisbuilt to
accommodate three additional providers toavoid theneedofadditional Towers.  Crown Castle
hasanaverage of2.5carriers perTower, which depends onneedandlocation.  D. Simpson
stated thatbecause theyhaveshown aneed, doesn’tjustify putting aTower where they are
proposing.  Attorney J. Campbell statedCrown Castle isinthebusiness ofbuilding CellTowers,  
because wecreate thedemand forthetheirbusiness.  D. Simpson stated thatshifting thelocation
tothenorth andbuilding a175’ tower would have lessofavisual impact.  Another co-locator
willwant togohigher.  OurRFConsultant stated that theywillhave togohigher toachieve their
coverage objective, which would raise theheight to175’ orhigher.  Chair R. Bennett stated that
ourConsultant didnotstate theywould havetogohigher, coverage needs would determine the
height oftheirantenna.  CEOA. Backus asked ifthisTower isbuilt toaccommodate three
additional carriers below the155’.  J. Davisstated thatitisshown ontheSitePlanto
accommodate threeotherCarriers.  Fromastructural stand point, it’samatter ofhowbig the
foundation isand thetypeofTower fromasteel prospective.  CEOA. Backus suggested that
someone would havemade theassumption that three additional Carriers would fitbelow.  J.  
Davis stated thatourCode states itneeds tobeconstructed toaccommodate three additional
Carriers, nottheirplacement.   Theydon’tknow whateachCarriers needs willbe.  J. Davis
stated thatifanother carrier wanted togohigher onthissite, theywould needtoprove the
difference inpropagation studies andtoourRFConsultant why145’ doesn’twork.  D. Simpson
stated thatifthecarrier wanted toreach theLivonia School, theywillprove that fairly easy.   J.  
Davis stated thatitisdifficult topredict theneedsofotherCarriers.  Itcouldbetwoyears from
nowwhen theywant toco-locate.  Theantennas orsignals could bedifferent, twoyears agowe
didn’thave4G, everything changes whenanewbandwidth comes outandverydifficult to
predict.  J. Palmer stated that theTower isnotgoing tobepretty, buttheyareeverywhere.  

4



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

Crown Castle hasdone everything theycantoaccommodate ourrequests andprovide us
information.  

Subsection question “F” wasanswered - Moderate tolarge impact mayoccur.  Proposed action
isinconsistent with thecharacter oftheexisting natural landscape.  Reasons supporting this
determination areasfollows aslistedonPart3oftheFullEnvironmental Assessment Form,  
Evaluation oftheMagnitude andImportance oftheProject Impacts.  Attorney J. Campbell
consulted with theBoard Members regarding completing Part3.  Itisageneral consensus ofthe
Board thatwhile itisamoderate tolarge impact overall, itwillnotcreate asignificant
environmental consequence.  The impact isvisual andwillbeshort term, there arenoother
concerns environmentally.  Camouflage efforts, such asdisguising likeapinetreearenotlikely
tohelp thevisual impact.  TheTown’sRFEngineer has reviewed alltheapplication data and
determined thattherequisite showing ofneed bytheapplicant andthelocation istheonlyoneto
meet coverage objectives including property availability. TheBoard foundamoderate tolarge
impact mayoccur asidentified inquestion 18-FontheFullEnvironmental Form.   ThePlanning
Board hasdetermined thatpotential impact isnotsignificant.    

ThePlanning Board identified andadopted thefollowing impact findings inregards toquestion
18Fhaving moderate tolarge impact:       

1)  Thevisual impact thatwilloccur isnotlikely toalongtermeffect.  People willbecome
accustomed andtheTower willbecome partofthevisual landscape.  
2)  Theonlyimpact thathasbeen identified, hasbeenavisual impact.  
3)  Efforts tomitigate that impact, suchascamouflage intheformofapinetreehavebeen
determined bytheBoard notlikely tobeofhelp inminimizing thevisual impact & possibly
make itworse.  
4)  TheTown’sRFEngineer hasreviewed allapplication materials, hasdetermined that the
applicant hasmade therequisite showing ofneed andthepresent location oftheTower isthe
onlyavailable location thatcanmeet theapplicant’scoverage objectives, andistheonlyproperty
known tobeavailable forthose needs.  
5)  Moving thetower further tothenorth ineffort tomitigate thevisual impact, mayslightly
reduce thevisual impact. Moving theTower would create asectoring issue andcelloverlap
which would likely cause interference incoverage, which hasbeen deemed bytheTown’sRF
Consultant notbetoapractical solution.   
6)  There arenootherknown design elements orproject changes thatcanfurther mitigate the
visual impact.  

ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove theadopted findings inregards toquestion 18-F.   
Motion toapprove: M/2/C (J. Palmer/J. Sparling) Ayes: (Bennett, Palmer, Richards, Sparling)  
Nays: (Haak, Simpson) Carried 4-2

5



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove theFullEnvironmental Assessment Form Part3.  
Negative Declaration wasdetermined based ontheabove findings.  Motion toapprove: M/2/C
D. Richards/J. Palmer) Ayes: (Bennett, Palmer, Richards, Sparling) Nays: (Haak, Simpson)  

Carried 4-2

ChairR. Bennett asked formotion tohave thePlanning Board Chair sign issuing thenegative
declaration.  Motion toapprove: (J. Sparling/D. Richards) Ayes: (Bennett, Palmer, Richards,  
Sparling) Nays: (Haak, Simpson) Carried 4-2

ChairR. Bennett asked theBoard togothrough theConditional UsePermit criteria.  

1.  Will theestablishment, maintenance oroperation oftheconditional usebedetrimental toor
endanger thepublic health, safety, comfort, morals orgeneral welfare?  No

2.  Will theconditional usebesubstantially injurious totheuseandenjoyment ofother property
intheimmediate vicinity which arepermitted byright inthezoning district ofconcern?  Will the
conditional usediminish orimpair property values intheimmediate vicinity?  No

3.  Will theestablishment oftheconditional useimpede normal andorderly development and
improvement ofother property inthe immediate vicinity foruses permitted byright inthe
district ofconcern?  No

4.  Willadequate measures betaken toprovide ingress andegress inmanner which minimizes
pedestrian andvehicular traffic congestion inthepublic ways?  Yes

5. Doadequate utilities, access roads, drainage andother facilities necessary totheoperation of
theconditional useexist, oraretheytobeprovided?  Yes

6.  Does theconditional usepermit inallother respects conform totheapplicable regulations of
thischapter andother town/village laws, ordinances andregulations?  Yes

ChairR. Bennett asked theBoard foraMotion toapprove theConditional UsePermit forthe
CellTower with thecondition that thelotlinewould beamended fortheaccess roadtobeallon
oneparcel.  Motion toapprove: (J. Sparling/D. Richards) Ayes: (Bennett, Palmer, Richards,  
Sparling) Nays: (Haak, Simpson) Carried 4-2.  

Withnofurther questions, ChairR. Bennett asked forMotion toadjourn themeeting at9:38
p.m...  Motion toadjourn: M/2/C (R. Haak/D. D. Simpson) Carried 6-0

Respectfully Submitted,   
Alison Houk, Recording Secretary

6



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thJune12 2017

7


